
Meeting of:  Middleton Township Committee
Date: Thursday, 3rd August, 2017
Time: 6.15 pm.
Venue: Middleton Arena - LCpl Joel Halliwell VC Way, 

Middleton,  Manchester M24 1AG

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Ite
m 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

5.  OPEN FORUM 

Half an hour has been set aside for members of the public to raise any 
issues relevant to the business of the Committee and the Township. 

6.  MINUTES 3 - 9

To consider the Minutes of the meeting of Middleton Township 
Committee held Wednesday, 28th June 2017. 

Public Document Pack



7.  OBJECTIONS TO TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER - 
MANCHESTER OLD ROAD, MIDDLETON 

10 - 37

To consider objections to a proposed Traffic Regulation Order at 
Manchester Old Road, Middleton.  

8.  BUDGET 2018/19 TO 2020/21 GUIDELINES, TIMETABLE AND 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT 

38 - 53

The Township Committee will receive an update on the Budget 
2018/19 to 2020/21 guidelines, timetable and public engagement, for 
consultative purposes. 

9.  TOWNSHIP PLANNING PANELS 54 - 57

The Township Committee is requested to consider proposals for the 
determination of Township engagement with current and emerging 
Planning Proposals and priorities for the use of current or prospective 
‘Section 106 funds’. 

Middleton Township Committee Members:

Councillor Andy Bell Councillor Malcolm Boriss
Councillor Phil Burke Councillor Neil Emmott
Councillor Susan Emmott Councillor Christopher Furlong
Councillor Peter Joinson Councillor Donna Martin E
Councillor Linda Robinson Councillor Sara Rowbotham
Councillor Susan Smith Councillor Carol Wardle
Councillor June West (Chair) Councillor Donna Williams (Vice Chair)
Councillor Peter Williams

For more information about this meeting, please contact:
Peter Thompson
Governance and Committee Services
01706 924715 
Peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 

mailto:Peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 28th June 2017

PRESENT:  Councillor June West (In the Chair); Councillors Bell, Burke, Neil 
Emmott, Susan Emmott, Furlong, Joinson, Martin, Rowbotham, Wardle, Peter 
Williams and Donna Williams

OFFICERS: J Rooney (Assistant Director Information, Customers and 
Communities) A Webster and L Mason (Neighbourhoods Directorate) 
N Barton (Economy Directorate), and C Denyer (Resources Directorate)

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Inspector K Williams and Sergeant L Bracey 
(GMP) and approximately 15 members of the public

APOLOGIES
1 Apologies were received from Councillors Boriss, Robinson and Smith.

MINUTE'S SILENCE
2 The Committee observed a period of silence in respect of those who 
died or were seriously injured as a result of the terrorist attacks at the 
Manchester Arena, London Bridge, Borough Market and Finsbury Park in 
London and in the Grenfell Tower fire tragedy.

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS
3 In accordance with the Code of Conduct for Councillor and Voting Co-
Opted Members declared personal interests in agenda item 8 - Middleton 
Township Funds 2017/18 as follows:-
Councillors Joinson, West and Peter Williams declared a personal interest in 
the funding applications relating to the Middleton Town Centre Management 
Company. 
Councillor Neil Emmott declared a person interest in the funding application 
relating to Boardman Fold Road. 

VARIATION OF ORDER OF BUSINESS
4 In accordance with the Council Procedure Rule 2.2 the Chair indicated 
that agenda items 5 - Objections to Traffic Regulation Order - Manchester Old 
Road, Middleton - would be considered before agenda item 3 - Minutes - and 
prior to all other business contained within the agenda thereafter.

APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR OF MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP 
COMMITTEE - 2017/18
5 DECIDED – that Councillor Donna Williams be appointed Vice-
Chair of the Middleton Township Committee for 2017/2018.

OPEN FORUM
6 The Senior Highways Officer updated the Committee with regard to the 
issues raised at the Open Forum relating to Birch Village at the meeting held 
on 23rd March 2017. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



The Committee were advised of a meeting that had been held on 14th June 
2017 between officers of Rochdale Highways Service, the Rochdale 
Conversation Officer, the Cabinet Member for Housing & Environment, Mr 
Louden, who had raised the questions in the Open forum, and a number of 
Birch Residents in order to discuss the traffic signal proposals for the area and 
a number of wider issues which had been raised. The Committee were 
informed that the Highways Service had agreed to produce a draft masterplan 
detailing the proposals for the long term aspirations of Birch Village which 
would provide a basis for further discussion with residents. 

The following matters were raised in the open forum – 

Proposed Traffic Regulation Order –Manchester Old Road

In response to questions regarding the proposed traffic regulation order on 
Manchester Old Road the Chair advised that a report on the proposed 
introduction of an extension to the existing prohibition of waiting restrictions on 
the north side of Manchester Old Road, opposite the junction of Boothroyden 
Road was to be considered by the Committee following the Open Forum.

Pershore Road Steps and Handrail

A resident requested that additional steps and handrail be installed on the 
grass bank leading to the pathway on Pershore Road, Hollin. The Townships 
& Engagement Officer undertook to forward the request to Rochdale 
Boroughwide Housing for a response.

Japanese Knotweed

A resident raised an issue regarding Japanese Knotweed which had 
overgrown the public footpath at the rear of the properties on York Road 
West. The Townships & Engagement Officer undertook to ensure that a 
written response would be provided to the query.  
 
OBJECTIONS TO TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER - MANCHESTER OLD 
ROAD, MIDDLETON
7 The Committee considered a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
that advised Members of objections and representations received in relation to 
a proposed introduction of a prohibition of waiting restrictions along 
Manchester Old Road, Middleton. 

This Traffic Regulation Order was proposed as part of a road safety scheme 
along the route and was promoted to remove parking along the lengths of 
roads concerned, which affect visibility, the movement of through traffic and 
access.

In considering the report Members raised several concerns in relation to the 
proposed traffic regulation order.

Page 4



DECIDED – that that consideration of the proposed traffic regulation 
order be deferred for further information and consultation with 
highways officers.

MINUTES
8 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of Middleton 
Township Committee held 23rd March 2017 be approved as a correct 
record.

LANGLEY SECTION 106
9 The Township Committee considered a report of the Director of 
Economy which set out the amount of Section 106 public open space monies 
accrued within Middleton Township as at 30th May 2017; and which sought 
approval for the allocation of funds from relevant Section106 receipts to fund 
open space improvements in West Middleton.

The recommendations in the report were presented as various reports relating 
to the setting up of procedures to monitor income and spend from planning 
agreements have been presented to relevant Council Committees since 2009. 
There had been broad Member support for improvements and greater 
transparency to be introduced to this process with the intention that a 
Township Committee should be able to determine any spend, in accordance 
with the terms of any legal agreements and/or relevant planning policies and 
to align the use of any monies in line with that Township’s priorities. Middleton 
Township Members had previously requested that all Section 106 open space 
funded schemes be approved by Members by way of a report to Township 
Committee. A similar process of reporting exists in the Borough’s other three 
Townships.

Alternatives considered: Section 106 open space contributions are collected 
and administered in accordance with national and local policy obligations, set 
out in the Council’s Supplementary Planning document, therefore no 
alternatives were considered.

DECIDED – That (1) the Committee notes the current resources held 
within Middleton Township’s Section 106 public open space budget;

(2) the Committee approves the allocation of £17,300 of open 
space contributions to fund the projects identified in the Director of 
Economy’s submitted report.
Eligible for Call-in: Yes

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP DELEGATION ARRANGEMENTS AND 
APPOINTMENTS 2017/18
10 The Township Committee considered the report of the Acting Director 
of Resources which informed the Committee that at the start of each 
municipal year, the Committee is required to confirm its delegated decision 
making arrangements for the year as detailed in appendix 1 to the submitted 
report and to make appointments to Township Sub-Committees, (including the 
Chair and Vice Chair) and other bodies as detailed in Appendix 2 to the 
report.

Page 5



The recommendations were presented to enable the Committee to confirm its 
delegated decision making arrangements for the 2017/2018 Municipal Year as 
required by the Council Constitution. The proper appointment of Sub-
Committees were required to permit the undertaking of delegated functions in 
accordance with statutory and procedural requirements, and appointments to 
Working Groups and Other Bodies were required to enable the Township 
Committee to undertake and to respond to the full range of issues relevant to 
the Township.

Alternatives Considered: The Committee could choose not to appoint to sub-
committees and undertake all delegated functions themselves, but this may 
have a detrimental impact on the ability to progress Township priorities or deal 
with urgent items of business. The Committee could choose to adopt 
alternative Sub-Committee arrangements.

DECIDED - that (1) the Sub-Committee structure of the Middleton 
Township Committee, comprising the Middleton Township Devolved 
Funding and Services Sub-Committee and the Middleton Township 
Delegated Sub-Committee be confirmed;

(2) the terms of reference of the Middleton Township Devolved 
Funding and Services Sub-Committee and the Middleton Township 
Delegated Sub-Committee, be approved; 
(3) Appointments to Middleton Township Sub-Committees, Working 
Groups and other Bodies for 2017/2018 will be as follows:-

Township Sub-Committees

Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Services Sub-Committee

Councillor West (Chair), Councillor Donna Williams (Vice Chair)
Councillors Bell; Boriss; Burke; Neil Emmott; Susan Emmott; Furlong; 
Joinson; Martin; Robinson; Rowbotham; Smith; Wardle and Peter 
Williams

Middleton Township Delegated Sub-Committee

Councillor West (Chair), Councillor Donna Williams (Vice Chair), 
Councillors Susan Emmott, Joinson and Rowbotham, 
Substitute Members – Councillors Furlong and Peter Williams

Township Working Groups

Middleton Township Environment and Culture Forum

Councillor West (Chair), Councillors Bell; Boriss; Burke; Neil Emmott; 
Susan Emmott; Furlong; Joinson; Martin; Robinson; Rowbotham; 
Smith; Wardle; Donna Williams and Peter Williams

Page 6



Middleton Regeneration and Transport Working Party

Councillor West (Chair), Councillors Bell; Boriss; Burke; Neil Emmott; 
Susan Emmott; Furlong; Joinson; Martin; Robinson; Rowbotham; 
Smith; Wardle; Donna Williams and Peter Williams

Other Bodies

Langley Estate Strategy Group – Councillor Smith; 
Substitute Member – Councillor Burke

Middleton Town Centre Management Company and Middleton Market 
Company: Councillors Joinson; West and Peter Williams. 

Brentwood Day Centre – Management Committee – Councillor Donna 
Williams

Heritage Board - Councillors Bell; Susan Emmott; Rowbotham and West.

Eligible for call in - no

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDS REVIEW
11 The Committee considered the report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods which provided a review of revenue and capital expenditure 
during 2016/17 and provided options for the allocation of funds in 2017/18. 
The Committee were also requested to consider the Middleton Township 
Funds terms and conditions and delegation arrangements concerning funding 
decisions.

The recommendations were put forward as management of the Middleton 
Township Fund is delegated to the Middleton Township Devolved Funding 
and Devolved Services Sub-Committee. Middleton Township Funds are 
allocated to projects/schemes that benefit the Township’s community and 
environment and realise the Township priorities and to enable the Committee 
to monitor and review the use of the Middleton Township Funds to ensure 
continued efficient and effective use of Township Funds.

DECIDED – that (1) the expenditure, commitments and balances for 
Middleton Township revenue and capital funds at financial year end 
2016/17 as detailed in Appendix 1 and 2 of the submitted report be 
noted;

(2) the findings of the review of Township Funds 2016/17 as 
detailed in Appendix 3 of the submitted report and feedback received to 
date for some of the projects funded during 2016/17 as detailed in 
Appendix 4 of the submitted report be noted;

(3) the allocation of Middleton Township Funds to funding 
streams in 2017/18 be approved as Option One for Revenue Funds and 
Option Two for Capital Funds as detailed in Appendix 5 of the submitted 
report;

Page 7



(4) the terms and conditions for the Middleton Township revenue 
and capital funds for 2017/18 as detailed in Appendix 6 of the submitted 
report be approved;

(5) the delegation arrangements for Middleton Township Funds 
2017/18 as detailed in paragraph 4.6 of the submitted report be 
approved.
Eligible for call in: yes

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2017/18
12 The Sub-Committee considered the report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods which provided an update on revenue and capital 
expenditure, commitments and balances of Middleton Township Funds 
2017/18 and enabled the allocation of funds to proposed projects.

The recommendations were put forward as management of the Middleton 
Township Fund is delegated to the Middleton Township Devolved Funding 
and Devolved Services Sub-Committee and to enable the Sub-Committee to 
monitor and review the use of the Middleton Township Funds to ensure 
continued efficient and effective use of Township Funds. Middleton Township 
Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the Township’s community and 
environment, and realise the Township priorities.  

In terms of alternatives considered, Members will decide whether or not to 
approve the allocation of funds to projects as appropriate.

DECIDED – That (1) the expenditure, commitments and balances for 
Middleton Township revenue and capital funds as detailed in Appendix 1 
and 2 of the submitted report be noted;

(2) that the decisions made under delegated authority as detailed 
in Appendix 3 of the submitted report be noted;

(3) the Townships & Communities Manager has assessed 
proposed projects to be considered for funding against the criteria of 
eligibility for the Middleton Township Fund, the priorities of the 
Township and that any specific risks had been identified as detailed in in 
appendix 4 of the submitted report be noted

(4) that the funding allocations for the projects as detailed in 
Appendix 4 of the submitted report and as tabled at the meeting be dealt 
with as follows:-

Appendix 
Ref

Project/Scheme Name Decision

Middleton Township Revenue Projects
4A Ashness Drive Speed Survey Approve an award of £300 from 

West Ward Revenue Funds

4B 20mph Speed Limit Study
Deferred for consultation with 
Highways officers regarding the 
findings of the Manchester 20 mph 
zone survey.

4C Assertive Outreach Project Approve an award of £4,500 from 
the Township Revenue Project fund

Page 8



4D Springfield Road/Middleton 
Parish School Investigation Application withdrawn

4E Explore Your Environment Deferred for consultation with the 
local ‘friends’ groups

4F
Middleton Town Centre 
Christmas Lights Switch On 
2017

Approve an award of £3000 from 
the Township Revenue Project fund

4G Middleton Town Centre 
Management Function 2017

Approve an award of £10,000 from 
the Township Revenue Project fund

Middleton Township Capital Projects

4H Lodge Street Parking 
Restrictions Review

Deferred to enable Ward 
Councillors to consult Highways 
Officers

4I Heywood Old Road No 
Waiting Restrictions Application withdrawn

4J Bentley Avenue/Stakehill 
Lane Waiting Restrictions

Deferred to enable Ward 
Councillors to consult Highways 
Officers

4K Ash Street Parking 
Restrictions

Approve an award of £4,000 from 
East Ward Capital Funds

4L Boardman Fold Road Waiting 
Restrictions

Deferred to enable Ward 
Councillors to consult Highways 
officers

4M
Green Lane Junction with 
Hazel Road Parking 
Restrictions

Deferred to enable Ward 
Councillors to consult Highways 
officers

4N Furness Road Bollards
Deferred to enable Ward 
Councillors to consult Highways 
officers

4O Mossway Kissing Gates Deferred to enable Ward 
Councillors to consult with officers

4P Hall Drive Waiting 
Restrictions

Approve an award of £4,000 from 
the South Ward Capital fund.

4Q
Long Street/Old Hall Street 
Christmas Trees - Shop 
Fronts

Approve an award of £9,024.71 from 
the from the Township Capital fund.

4R Windermere Road Additional 
Guardrail

Approve an award of £10,000 from 
the West Ward Capital fund.

Eligible for call in – yes

Page 9



Report to Middleton Township Committee

Date of Meeting 3rd August 2017
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Housing & Environment
Report Author Andrew Cowell
Public

Objections to Traffic Regulation Order - Manchester Old Road, 
Middleton

Executive Summary

1. Following a road safety review on part of Manchester Old Road, Middleton, an 
application was made to TfGM to fund various improvement measures to reduce the 
occurrence and severity of accidents on this route. Funding was approved for the 
Council to introduce the scheme, which includes a number of proposed parking 
restrictions. 

During the consultation period the Authority received eight objections and a petition 
against the proposal.

Part of the proposal includes an extension to existing prohibition of waiting restrictions 
on the north side of Manchester Old Road, opposite the junction of Boothroyden 
Road, to assist HGV’s turning at the junction. The focus of concern for residents who 
have objected is that these particular restrictions are not required as there are no 
HGVs now operating in this area. However, it is the view of officers that restrictions 
should be introduced to at least cover the area directly opposite the junction, to 
accord with guidance set out in the Highway Code.

Recommendation

2. The Committee should consider whether the proposed Traffic Regulation Order, 
Borough of Rochdale ((Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) (Various Streets) 
(Middleton Township) Order 2008) (Amendment) (No.50) Order be implemented, as 
advertised, or as amended, or abandoned in light of the representations received, 
which are outlined in Appendix C of this report. It is the recommendation of Officers 
that the proposal be introduced as advertised or amended, with the preferred option 
for the proposal to be amended.

Page 10

Agenda Item 7



Reason for Recommendation

3. This Traffic Regulation Order was proposed as part of a road safety scheme along 
the route. The Traffic Regulation Order was promoted to remove parking along the 
lengths of roads concerned, which affect visibility, the movement of through traffic 
and access. To address the issues and ensure the scheme can be completed fully, it 
is necessary to introduce the proposed Order as originally advertised or amended 
(see Appendix A and B respectively).

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

During the consultation period the Authority received eight objections. A petition was 
also received containing the names of 31 residents, some of whom also sent in an 
objection in addition to signing the petition.

To comply with the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and Wales) 
Regulations 1996 the  Authority must consider all objections submitted during the 
consultation period of 21 days before ‘Making’ a Traffic Regulation Order.

It should be noted that in considering the report, the proposed Order is deemed 
strategic in nature and should be dealt with in accordance with Section 8.2-3 of the 
Scheme of Delegation to Township Committee. Committee has delegated power to 
confirm the proposals and the Order. However, if the Committee wish not to confirm 
the proposals and the Order, the matter must be referred to Cabinet for decision.

In considering the objections the Committee should be mindful that the only right 
the general public has on the highway is a right of passage along it. The Council, 
acting in its capacity as Highway Authority, have a duty of care to ensure the safety of 
the travelling public and a duty under the Traffic Management Act 2004 to maintain 
the expeditious movement of traffic. This should be considered in light of high 
casualty figures experienced by this relatively short stretch of highway.

The Objectors’ comments and the Director of Neighbourhoods response
are attached at Appendix C of this report.

Alternatives Considered

Consider recommending to Cabinet that the proposal be abandoned

The proposal to make a Traffic Regulation Order affecting parts of Manchester Old 
Road, Middleton, was developed as part of a package of road safety measures 
aimed at reducing the incidence and severity of injury accidents along this principal 
route. The works, including the cost of promoting and implementing the TRO, are 
being funded by TfGM. Local Ward Councillors have been consulted regarding the 
proposed Traffic Regulation Orders .

Should Committee decide not to introduce the restrictions proposed then the issues 
with parked vehicles, which were identified in the study, will not be addressed.

It should be noted that this Traffic Regulation Order was proposed as part of a road 
safety scheme along the route. The Traffic Regulation Order was promoted to 
remove parking along the lengths of roads concerned, which affect visibility, the 

Page 11



movement of through traffic and access. To address the issues it is necessary to 
introduce the proposed Order as originally advertised or amended (see Appendix A 
and B respectively).

Consider recommending to Cabinet that the proposal be relaxed

Part of the proposal includes an extension to existing prohibition of waiting restrictions 
on the north side of Manchester Old Road, opposite the junction of Boothroyden 
Road. The restrictions were proposed in this location with the aim of assisting HGVs 
turning from the side street, Boothroyden Road, on to the main road, Manchester Old 
Road.

At the time the study was completed, frequent HGV movements took place at the 
junction due to a factory operating from a nearby site on Boothroyden Road. The 
factory has now closed and there is a proposal for a housing development on the site.

The focus of concern for residents who have objected is that these particular 
restrictions are not required as there are no HGVs now operating in this area. 
However, it is the view of officers that restrictions should be introduced to at least 
cover the area directly opposite the junction, to accord with guidance set out in the 
Highway Code.

The restrictions on site extend to a distance of 11.5 metres west of Egerton Street. 
This does not match the distance specified in the original Traffic Regulation Order 
and is not consistent with other nearby junctions which are protected by 15 metres of 
restriction. The Committee should therefore consider relaxing the original proposal 
from 28 metres to 15 metres, to increase visibility at Egerton Street and to protect the 
area opposite Boothroyden Road. This option would require an amendment to the 
advertised proposal by amending the Consolidation Order as shown in Appendix B 
and require the double yellow lines on site to be extended from 11.5 to 15 metres.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. The cost of the proposed Traffic Regulation Order will be met by TfGM from the 
scheme fund.

Risk and Policy Implications

The Council has a statutory duty to ensure that its highways operate safely and 
efficiently, for all traffic including pedestrians.

6.

Consultation

7. Consultation required by the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders, (Procedure) (England 
and Wales) Regulations 1996 has taken place.

The Emergency Services, Transport for Greater Manchester, The Freight Transport 
Association and the Road Haulage Association were consulted on 1st March 2017.

Notices of intention were posted on site and published in the local newspaper on 9th 
March 2017.

The objection period ran until 30th March 2017.

Page 12



Background

8. Statement of Reasons

Following a road safety review on part of Manchester Old Road, Middleton, an 
application was made to TfGM to fund various improvement measures to reduce the 
occurrence and severity of accidents on this route. Funding was approved for the 
Council to introduce the scheme, which includes a number of proposed parking 
restrictions.

Manchester Old Road is an important strategic route linking Middleton town centre 
with the M60. It is a principal route which also extends into Manchester and is subject 
to high traffic flows. The speed limit is 30 mph.

Following a review of collision data, the section identified for treatment was between 
Heywood Old Road and Broad Street. This section of the route runs through a 
densely populated residential area with a high number of side roads.

The review highlighted a number of concerns including the number of collisions 
involving right turning vehicles, and pedestrians. There were also concerns over the 
positioning of parked vehicles along the route. The treatments identified include the 
introduction of pedestrian guard rail at existing crossing points, new central hatched 
areas and right turn lanes, cycle lane facilities at pinch points as well as other minor 
road marking and signing alterations.

There are a number of locations where parking restrictions are proposed. These are 
discussed individually below: 

Existing restrictions are in place on the south side of Manchester Old Road on 
the two-lane approach to the signals at Kelvin Avenue. However, the 
restrictions fall short of the point where the two lanes commence. Parked 
vehicles therefore prevent part of the nearside lane being used, which 
reduces capacity.

Existing restrictions on the south side of Manchester Old Road at the junction 
of Lands End Road extend to a point 15 metres on each side. A parking lay-
by is situated at a point 32 metres east of the junction. It is proposed to extend 
the restrictions up to the lay-by to increase visibility at the junction and to 
accommodate a proposed cycle lane.

On the south side of Manchester Old Road between Bonny Brow Street and 
Boothroyden Road, there are existing day-time restrictions in place which 
operate Mon-Sat, 7:30 am to 6:30 pm. It is proposed to replace these 
restrictions with 24 hour prohibition of waiting restrictions to allow the centre 
line to be off-set further south and for parking bays to be marked out on the 
north side.

On the north side of Manchester Old Road, opposite the junction of 
Boothroyden Road, it is proposed to extend the existing restrictions in a 
westerly direction to allow HGVs to negotiate the exit from the side street onto 
the main road unhindered.

At the junction of Chapel Street, it is proposed to extend the controlled 

Page 13



crossing zig zag markings on both sides to increase visibility for both 
pedestrians and motorists at the pedestrian crossing and to ensure that the 
markings comply with the Pedestrian Crossings Regulations.

 The accident record up to May 2015, when the scheme was devised, shows 
16 personal injury collisions over a 5 year period. There were 20 casualties, 5 
of which were serious along with one fatality.

 It is proposed to implement prohibition of waiting restrictions on:

the south side of Manchester Old Road from a point 54 metres east of its 
junction with Kelvin Avenue for a distance of 26 metres in an easterly 
direction this will allow vehicles to fully utilise the two westbound lanes on 
the approach to the signals, increasing capacity; the south side of 
Manchester Old Road from a point 15 metres east of Lands End Road for a 
distance of 17 metres in an easterly direction this will extend the visibility 
splay along the south side of Manchester Old Road, improving visibility for 
motorists attempting to exit Lands End Road and will allow for the 
introduction of a cycle lane to help protect cyclists crossing the junction

the south side of Manchester Old Road from a point 15 metres east of its 
junction with Bonny Brow Street to a point 10 metres west of its junction 
with Blackley Street and from a point 10 metres east of its junction with 
Blackley Street to a point 10 metres west of its junction with Boothroyden 
Road this will remove the parking from the south side and allow the centre-
line to be off-set further south. This will allow parking bays to be marked out 
on the north side. It will formalise the parking arrangements, preventing 
double parking thereby improving two-way traffic flows.

the north side of Manchester Old Road from a point 15 metres west of its 
junction with Egerton Street for a distance of 13 metres in a westerly 
direction this will allow HGVs to make the left turn from Boothroyden Road 
into Manchester Old Road without being hindered by parked vehicles

To extend the existing controlled crossing zig zag markings on the south 
side of Manchester Old Road to a point 16 metres west of a point opposite 
the easterly kerb-line of Chapel Street and on the north side to a point 24 
metres east of the easterly kerb-line of Chapel Street this will increase 
visibility for pedestrians waiting at the crossing and for motorists 
approaching the crossing

The Notice of Intention and associated plans illustrate the proposal at Appendix A 
of this report.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

9.

For Further Information Contact: highways@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 14



APPENDIX  A – Notice of Intention and plans

BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE
((CIVIL ENFORCEMENT OF TRAFFIC CONTRAVENTIONS)

(VARIOUS STREETS) (MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP) ORDER 2008)
(AMENDMENT) (NO. 50) ORDER

Manchester Old Road, Middleton

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Rochdale Borough Council, in exercise of its 
powers under Sections 1(1), 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, intend to 
make an Order, the effect of which would be to:-

(i) Amend the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) 
(Various Streets) (Middleton Township) Order 2008 by inserting the following:-

Schedule No. 1.1
No Waiting At Any Time

Manchester Old Road, South Middleton Ward

n(xxvi) the south side from its junction with Kelvin Avenue for a distance of 80 metres in 
an easterly direction

n(xxvii)the south side from its junction with Lands End Road for a distance of 32 metres  
in an easterly direction

n(xxvii)the south side from its junction with Bonny Brow Street to its junction with 
Boothroyden Road

n(xxviii)the north side from its junction with Egerton Street for a distance of 28 metres 
in a westerly direction

(ii) Revoke those parts of the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic 
Contraventions) (Various Streets) (Middleton Township) Order 2008, as follows:-

Schedule No. 1.1
No Waiting At Any Time

Manchester Old Road, South Middleton Ward

(xv) the south side from its junction with Boothroyden Road to a point 3 metres south 
of its junction with Boothroyden Road

(xvii) the south side from its junction with Bonny Brow Street to a point 16 metres east 
of its junction with Bonny Brow Street

(xx) the south side from its junction with Lands End Road to a point 15 metres east of 
its junction with Lands End Road

(xxi) the south side from its junction with Kelvin Avenue to a point 54 metres east of 
its junction with Kelvin Avenue

Page 15



Schedule No. 2.20
No Waiting Mon-Sat 7.30am-6.30pm

Manchester Old Road, South Middleton Ward

(iii) the south side from a point 16 metres east of its junction with Bonny Brow Street 
to a point 33 metres east of its junction with Bonny Brow Street

A copy of the proposed Order and a map showing the lengths of roads concerned, 
together with the Council’s Statement of Reasons for making the Order, may be 
inspected at The Customer Services Centre, Middleton Library, Long Street, Middleton 
M24 6DU during normal office hours.

Objections to the proposed Order, stating the grounds on which they are made, must be 
made in writing and forwarded to trafficorders@rochdale.gov.uk or, alternatively, to 
Network Management, Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 
1XU to reach the Council on or before 30th March 2017, quoting H60/1240.

Dated this 9th day of March 2017

David Wilcock
Assistant Director – Legal, Governance & Workforce

Rochdale Borough Council
Number One Riverside
Smith Street
ROCHDALE
OL16 1XU

Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



APPENDIX  B – Proposed amended Order and associated plan

BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE
((CIVIL ENFORCEMENT OF TRAFFIC CONTRAVENTIONS) (VARIOUS STREETS)

(MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP) ORDER 2008)
(AMENDMENT) (NO. 50) ORDER XXXX

Manchester Old Road, Middleton

The Rochdale Borough Council, in exercise of its powers under Sections 1(1), 2 and 4 of 
the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (“the Act”) and of all other enabling powers, and 
after consultation with the Chief Officer of Police in accordance with Section 124(1) and 
paragraph 20(1) of Part III of Schedule 9 to the Act, hereby make the following Order:-

1. This Order may be cited as the Borough of Rochdale ((Civil Enforcement of Traffic 
Contraventions) (Various Streets) (Middleton Township) Order 2008) (Amendment) 
(No. 50) Order XXXX and shall come into operation on XXst XXXX XXXX.

2. The Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) (Various 
Streets) (Middleton Township) Order 2008 is hereby amended by inserting the 
wording shown in Schedule 1 to this Order.

3. That part of the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) 
(Various Streets) (Middleton Township) Order 2008, as shown in Schedule 2 to this 
Order be hereby revoked.

4. The Interpretation Act 1978 shall apply for the interpretation of this Order as it 
applies for the interpretation of an Act of Parliament.

S C H E D U L E  1 

Schedule No. 1.1
No Waiting At Any Time

Manchester Old Road, South Middleton Ward

n(xxvi) the south side from its junction with Kelvin Avenue for a distance of 80 metres in 
an easterly direction

n(xxvii)the south side from its junction with Lands End Road for a distance of 32 metres  
in an easterly direction

n(xxvii)the south side from its junction with Bonny Brow Street to its junction with 
Boothroyden Road

n(xxviii)the north side from its junction with Egerton Street for a distance of 15 metres 
in a westerly direction

S C H E D U L E  2

Schedule No. 1.1
No Waiting At Any Time

Manchester Old Road, South Middleton Ward

Page 20



(xv) the south side from its junction with Boothroyden Road to a point 3 metres south 
of its junction with Boothroyden Road

(xvii) the south side from its junction with Bonny Brow Street to a point 16 metres east 
of its junction with Bonny Brow Street

(xx) the south side from its junction with Lands End Road to a point 15 metres east of 
its junction with Lands End Road

(xxi) the south side from its junction with Kelvin Avenue to a point 54 metres east of 
its junction with Kelvin Avenue

Schedule No. 2.20
No Waiting Mon-Sat 7.30am-6.30pm

Manchester Old Road, South Middleton Ward

(iii) the south side from a point 16 metres east of its junction with Bonny Brow 
Street to a point 33 metres east of its junction with Bonny Brow Street

Dated this XXth day of XXXX 2017

THE COMMON SEAL of THE ROCHDALE )

BOROUGH COUNCIL was hereunto affixed )

in the presence of: )

Authorised Signatory

Page 21



Page 22



APPENDIX C – Objections Received & Petition

Objector 1                 . Residential occupiers of 658 Manchester Old 
Road

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

Dear David Wilcock, 

I am emailing to objected about the extension of 
double yellow lines on Manchester Old Rd 
Middleton. This has been decided by the council 
without any consideration for the residents that 
live and pay council tax on that road especially 
the terraced houses it effects the most. 

By extending these lines you will not only be 
devaluing our properties by thousands and are 
you willing to compensate us for this? When 
selling houses people need to know they can 
park near there property and extending the lines 
is restricting parking for several properties 
therefore making them less desirable to 
purchase, also it is already a struggle to find 
somewhere to park as the terraced houses a 
facing already have parking restrictions and the 
side streets do not and can not accommodate all 
the residents cars. This would therefore mean I 
would have to park some distance from my 
house with two children and leave my car out of 
sight. In addition my husband had recently had 
cancer and being able to park close to our 
property has been invaluable as he would of 
defiantly not been well enough to walk some 
distance after his intensive treatment.  

You report in your letter that the main cause was 
due to the pallet yard on Boothroyden Road 
which has since closed and is not to be re opened 
so why would you cause such disruption to the 
resident without any consideration for our day to 
day living, therefore there is no valid reason for 
the north side of Manchester Old Rd restrictions 
to go ahead. I am a specialist public health nurse 
and my job is to promote public health and all I 
can see with your inconsiderate decision is 
Rochdale council causing stress, anxiety, 
arguments between resident maybe even 
criminal damage to some cars by disgruntled 
neighbour who do not appreciated we have had 
to start parking outside their property and let's 

No decisions have been made. The 
proposals were drafted following the 
analysis of accident data and following 
site inspections. The proposal has been 
publicly advertised. The Committee will 
make a decision based on the 
representations received.

The only right the general public, including 
residents, has on the highway is a right of 
passage along it. The Council does not 
have a duty to create or maintain on-
street parking for residents. There is no 
legal mechanism for residents to claim 
compensation for loss of on-street car 
parking spaces.

At the time of advertising, the Highways 
Department were not aware of the closure 
of the pallet yard. The report describes an 
alternative proposal for consideration 
whereby the length of restriction is 
relaxed.

Page 23



be honest this happens parking wars.
 In my personal and profession opinion you have 
not taken into consideration the publics health 
and wellbeing but decided to do something for 
your benefit. I have lived in this property for 17 
years and there has never been any issues 
because residents have parked on the front and I 
am not prepared to take a drop in my properties 
price because of your decisions. I would 
appreciate it if the council could consider this 
decision very carefully, all the neighbours have 
come together and are outraged by this decision 
and have signed a petition. I'm sure if this was 
effecting you and your family and property price 
you wouldn't be happy about it. 

Kind regards 

                . 

The scheme is aimed at reducing the 
incidence and severity of injury accidents 
along Manchester Old Road. There is a 
benefit to all members of the public using 
the road.

Page 24



Objector 2 . Residential occupier of 672 Manchester Old Road

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

David Wilcock
Assistant Director – Legal Governance & 
Work Force

Dear David

Please see below a reminder of the email 
I sent to you on 5/3/2017.

Since this email a number of my 
neighbours have spoken to me and 
raised their concerns/objections to the 
new proposed plans for Manchester Old 
Road, Middleton 
Ref: H60/1240 and have mentioned that 
they too have sent in emails to object.  
Please find attached a Petition signed by 
my immediate neighbours of which there 
are 21 signatures who all agree that this 
is unacceptable.

Especially since one of the reason's no 
longer exists i.e. Trucks entering 
Boothyroyden Road to go to the Pallet 
factory as this is now closed and the site 
is cleared.  Boothyroyden Road was 
never built to withstand the size of some 
of the trucks that were eventually using 
that road, it began to get ridiculous.

We are all already aware of how difficult it 
is at times to find a parking spot when 
arriving home from work, at the moment 
we do try to co-operate with our 
neighbours and park respectfully but if 
any more space is taken away I know this 
will create arguments especially if we 
have to start parking around the back on 
Egerton or Walker street as this has 
caused friction in the past.

It is also thought by a 
number of  residents that the real reason 
behind this scheme is to fast track traffic 
on and off the motorway junction as has 
happened within other areas of the M60 

 

At the time of advertising, the Highways 
Department were not aware of the closure 
of the pallet yard. The report describes an 
alternative proposal for consideration 
whereby the length of restriction is 
relaxed.

The only right the general public, 
including residents, has on the highway is 
a right of passage along it. The Council 
does not have a duty to create or 
maintain on-street parking for residents.

As a principal road, Manchester Old Road 
is of strategic importance in moving traffic 
efficiently along the highway network. 
However, the main focus of the scheme is 

Page 25



ring road.

Once again as mentioned below in my 
previous email,I sincerely hope that this 
plan does not go ahead and strongly 
advise that you re-evaluate and discuss 
this matter further.

---------------------------

David Wilcock
Assistant Director – Legal Governance & 
Work Force

Dear David

I am writing to strongly disagree with the new 
proposed parking restrictions planned for 
Manchester Old Road, Middleton - TRO Ref: 
H60/1240 that have been brought to my 
attention today, especially concerning the 
junction of Boothroyden Road, Manchester 
Old Road.  Having spoken to a few of our 
neighbours already, I know that there are 
quite a few people who are not happy about 
the above plans and I am sure they will also 
state their case to you too.

Having now read the notice and also the 
Reasons of Statement from Rochdale 
Council my disagreement is with the 
statements below regarding the North 
side of Manchester Old Road (I disagree 
strongly, as the Pallet Company which 
used to operate at the bottom of 
Boothroyden Road is no longer in 
operation, it closed down at the end of 
December 2016 and this site is to be 
developed as housing), this means 
that HGV trucks will no longer have 
need to use this road).

H60/1240 

BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE ((CIVIL 
ENFORCEMENT OF TRAFFIC 
CONTRAVENTIONS) (VARIOUS 
STREETS) (MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP) 
ORDER 2008) (AMENDMENT) (NO. 50) 
ORDER 

to improve the safety for motorists and 
pedestrians.

At the time of advertising, the Highways 
Department were not aware of the closure 
of the pallet yard. The report describes an 
alternative proposal for consideration 
whereby the length of restriction is 
relaxed.

Page 26



Manchester Old Road, Middleton
Statement of Reasons  

 On the north side of Manchester 
Old Road, opposite the junction 
of Boothroyden Road, it is 
proposed to extend the existing 
restrictions in a westerly 
direction to allow HGVs to 
negotiate the exit from the side 
street onto the main road 
unhindered. 

 the north side of Manchester 
Old Road from a point 15 metres 
west of its junction with Egerton 
Street for a distance of 13 
metres in a westerly direction 
this will allow HGVs to make the 
left turn from Boothroyden Road 
into Manchester Old Road 
without being hindered by 
parked vehicles. 

I am appalled at the way this has been 
announced, not by individual letters as 
you would expect but by two posters 
being placed on posts, if my neighbour 
had not seen the posters being placed 
there I am sure that most of the residents 
would not have even been made aware 
of these plans.

Parking in Rhodes village in general is 
already restricted and to add more 
restrictions will cause utter chaos 
amongst residents.  The side and back 
roads are already full and I am concerned 
that this will cause anger and frustrations 
for residents trying to find a parking 
space.

I am also concerned regarding the value 
of my property as not having space to 
park will decrease the value and also 
potential buyers if I were to decide to 

The Council followed the Local 
Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 
when advertising this proposal. There is 
no requirement to letter drop local  
residents. This is standard procedure for 
all traffic orders advertised in the Borough 
of Rochdale.

As Highway Authority, the Council can 
only provide or maintain on-street parking 
spaces where is it safe and sensible to do 
so.

There is no legal mechanism for residents 
to claim compensation for loss of on-

Page 27



sell,   are Rochdale Council willing to 
reimburse residents for this devaluation?

I sincerely hope that this plan does not go 
ahead and strongly advise that you re-
evaluate and discuss this matter further.  
I would like to know if Rochdale 
Council are aware that the Pallet 
Company have now closed?

Regards

street car parking spaces.

This was brought to our attention 
following the proposal being advertised.

Page 28



Objector 3                 . (No address given)

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

To whom it may concern,

I wish to complain about the proposed traffic 
restrictions along Manchester Old Road. 
There is not enough parking as is now and 
further restrictions will only add fuel to an 
already disgruntled community. This is 
actually splitting the community not bringing 
them together as is supposed to be an 
important issue being addressed by councils, 
or is this just hearsay once again?
Also, why in earth are we making it easier for 
HGV/LGV vehicles to manoeuvre along and 
in and out of side roads eg Boothroyden Rd 
etc. Are these not professional drivers? If they 
are having problems then they should use 
smaller vehicles and perhaps a vehicle weight 
limit be imposed.
Also, has Manchester Old Road now become 
merely a thoroughfare for traffic to and from 
the motorway?
Prior to going to all the costs that you have 
gone to, why have ' sleeping policemen and a 
policed 20 mph' restrictions zone not been 
implemented?
Surely there must be alternative measures that 
actually support the community and not a 
scheme that has been revised to help 
everyone else and not even consider the 
community.
I do support the fact that any alterations that 
lessen and or even stop accidents/fatalities via 
traffic MUST be looked at but please 
consider more than one proposal.
I do hope that this will be  considered but I 
also cannot help feeling that I am wasting my 
time because you have already coated up and 
made these plans prior to even asking for 
community feedback.
I also find the way in which this is advertised 
eg on a west lamppost incredibly 
unprofessional and although it may be in 
local newspapers, not all residents read these. 
It may have been prudent to post these 
proposals to all residents in the area.

The report describes an alternative 
proposal for consideration whereby the 
length of restriction is relaxed due to the 
closure of the pallet yard.

As a principal road, Manchester Old Road 
is of strategic importance in facilitating the 
movement of traffic efficiently along the 
highway network.

Traffic calming measures and 20 mph 
zones are not appropriate for principal 
roads and would not be supported by the 
Police.

No decisions have been made. The 
proposals were drafted following the 
analysis of accident data and site 
inspections. The proposal has been 
publicly advertised. The Committee will 
make a decision based on the 
representations received.

The Council followed the Local 
Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 
when advertising this proposal. There is 
no requirement to letter drop  local 
residents. This is standard procedure for 

Page 29



I look forward to your reply. all traffic orders advertised in the Borough 
of Rochdale.

Page 30



Objector 4 . (No address given)

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

I am writeing this email about the above 
planned works on manchester old road it 
says its after a safety review of the road!.

the plan is to extend the road markings 
takeing away parking spaces for residents 
who find it difficult to park as it is .

if this plan goes ahead will there be 
alternitive local parking provided i think not 
as the council grant planing permision for 
any spare land.

this is more like the smart motorway is due 
to open not safety in my view.

if this goes ahead which i know it will do its 
going to cause friction between neighbours 
no doubt about that. it would have been nice 
to be informed about this in a better 
way than sneaking letters on to sign post 
hopeing nobody would notice!

i for one am against these so called safety 
plans and most residents will be i an sure.

the pallet company on boothroyden road 
had relocated so hgvs have no reason to go 
down this road and that land where the 
pallet company was has most likely got 
planning permision! stateing safety reasons 
for these plans is a total joke.  

The Council does not have a duty to 
create or maintain on-street or off-street 
parking for residents.

The Council followed the Local 
Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 
when advertising this proposal. There is 
no requirement to letter drop affected 
residents. This is standard procedure for 
all traffic orders advertised in the Borough 
of Rochdale.

The report describes an alternative 
proposal for consideration whereby the 
length of restriction is relaxed due to the 
closure of the pallet yard.

Page 31



Objector 5                 . Residential occupier of 690 Manchester Old 
Road

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

 Hi

I wish to object to the planned parking 
restrictions  for Manchester Old Road. 

I would like to enquire about disabled parking? 
My mother is disabled and has to park directly in 
front of our home for access, I want to know 
exactly what plans would be put in place to 
accommodate this? 

On the statement of reasons it states 'parking 
bays to be marked out on the north side', does 
this include the row of houses between Egerton 
St & Wilton St?

There is already a lot of issues regarding parking 
around my property and putting further 
restrictions in place would cause absolute chaos 
for myself and neighbours. Each property on this 
row owns 1-2 cars and by the time I return home 
from work at 6pm there is already nowhere for 
me to park. I often have to park on Walker 
Street/West Green which then causes a knock on 
effect for the residents who live there and results 
in less parking for them. 

The pallet company no longer operates on 
Boothroyden Road so I am unsure why there 
needs to be restrictions around this area?

Furthermore I think the council could of had the 
courtesy to post a letter through each door of 
the affected residents. I had no idea these 
restrictions were coming into place until a 
neighbour pointed this out on a lamppost. 

I look forward to hearing from you regarding the 
disabled access. 

Kind regards

                . 

The provision of disabled spaces for 
individual residents is not within the scope 
of the scheme. Individual requests for 
disabled parking bays can be made to the 
Council separately. This application 
process is separate to the scheme.

Yes

The only right the general public, 
including residents, has on the highway is 
a right of passage along it. The Council 
does not have a duty to create or maintain 
on-street parking for residents. There is 
no legal mechanism for residents to claim 
compensation for loss of on-street car 
parking spaces.

At the time of advertising, the Highways 
Department were not aware of the closure 
of the pallet yard. The report describes an 
alternative proposal for consideration 
whereby the length of restriction is 
relaxed.

The Council followed the Local 
Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 
when advertising this proposal. There is 
no requirement to letter drop affected 
residents. This is standard procedure for 
all traffic orders advertised in the Borough 
of Rochdale.

Page 32



Objector 6                 . (No address given)

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of Economy 
& Environment

 dear Mr D.Wilcock
I am a resident on Manchester old road where 
the council is proposing to extend the parking 
restrictions.
In your letter you state the purpose of 
extending the double yellow lines at 
Boothroyden road junction is to aid HGVs to 
turn more easily, however the pallet yard at 
the bottom of Boothroyden road is now 
closed and there will be no HGVs making 
that turn on a regular basis. Also an 
professional HGV driver should now how to 
make that turn according to my brother in law 
who happens to be HGV driving instructor.

I could understand the restrictions being put 
in place if the majority of residents wanted 
them, however everyone on the street I have 
spoken to is against the restrictions. It is my 
understanding the council is there to represent 
local opinions or have I got this wrong.

You also mention in the letter you are aware 
of the parking problems in the area, which 
will only get worse when construction takes 
place on Egerton street. If i had known about 
your above proposal, myself and the other 
residents, would have objected to it.

Lastly, if these parking restrictions are put in 
place, the house prices will drop as there is no 
on street parking.

I look forward to your response 

                . 

At the time of advertising, the Highways 
Department were not aware of the closure 
of the pallet yard. The report describes an 
alternative proposal for consideration 
whereby the length of restriction is 
relaxed.

In its capacity as Highway Authority, the 
duty of the Council is to ensure the safety 
of the public using the highway network. 
When new Traffic Regulation Orders are 
proposed, the public  can make 
representations, which are then 
considered by the relevant Township 
Committee.

Letters have not been sent out. The 
Highway Authority has not made this 
statement.  The Statement of Reasons 
was made public and can be viewed as 
part of this report. This email will be 
considered with the other representations.

There is no legal mechanism for residents 
to claim compensation for loss of on-
street car parking spaces.

Page 33



Objector 7                 . Residential occupier of 676 Manchester Old 
Road

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

 
Reference: - TRO Ref: H60/1240.

To whom it may concern,

With reference to the recent notice posted to 
my home address regarding the above parking 
restriction proposals along Manchester Old 
Road, I would like to offer the following 
comments.

 Firstly I would like to ask the 
following question.

 Although I am not a road traffic 
engineer, prior to going to all this 
time, effort and expense, was is 
considered that altering the speed 
limit, and policing such alterations, to 
20mph, might actually result in 
achieving the required outcome? and 
if so, why was this not adopted and 
trialled as a first measure?. (You may 
state that the objective here is to avoid 
injuries to the public but the 
proposals made by yourself will have 
to prove their worth via trial, so this, 
in my opinion, is not a valid answer.)  

 Although I agree that any alterations 
that effectively reduce the injury and 
possible fatalities within any 
community, you have stated that these 
are only proposals, as well as stating 
that have already secured the 
necessary funding to complete the 
project. This appears that public 
opinion was a secondary thought and 
that the restrictions will go ahead 
despite any objections being made.  

 I would like confirmation that as you 
state, the proposed restrictions to the 
two areas marked in red on the notice 
referring to 'the junction of 
Manchester Old Road and 
Boothroyden Rd and Manchester Old 

20 mph speed limits are not appropriate 
for introduction on principal roads and 
would not be supported by the Police.

The proposed Traffic Regulation Orders 
are only part of the safety scheme. The 
scheme involves improving surfacing,  
road markings and signs, which do not 
require public consultation. The funding 
also covers the cost of promoting the 
Traffic Regulation Orders.

At the time of advertising, the Highways 
Department were not aware of the closure 
of the pallet yard. The report describes an 
alternative proposal for consideration 
whereby the length of restriction is 
relaxed.

Page 34



road and Egerton Street, are no 
longer valid reasons due to the pallet 
company moving and that these parts 
of the proposal will be removed.

 With reference to the proposals for the 
'south side on Manchester Old Road 
between Bonny Brow Street and 
Boothroyden Road to move to a 24 
hour restriction allowing for parking 
bays to be marked out on the north 
side'.

o Will the introduction of 
parking bays allow for more 
vehicles to be parked? and if 
so how will this be designed.

o If the introduction of parking 
bays includes any alteration to 
road design, will this allow for 
the present street sweepers to 
access in order to mechanically 
cleanse? as we don't want an 
even dirtier roadway than we 
have now.

o For all who live within this 
boundary and Rhodes in all, 
Sunday is a family day and lots 
of families come and go all 
day long visiting their loved 
ones. In view of this can these 
restrictions be, perhaps, limited 
to a six day period (Monday to 
Saturday) and thus not 
applicable to a Sunday, as is 
the present restriction 
alteration.

I look forward to your comments 

Regards

                . 

The introduction of parking bays will 
formalise the parking arrangements by 
making it clear where parking is 
permitted. It will not create any further 
spaces and will be created with road 
markings only.

There are no plans to alter the physical 
design of the carriageway and footway 
but the centre line will be offset further 
south to allow for the parking bay to be 
marked.

It would not be appropriate to relax the 
proposed restrictions to allow parking on 
Sundays. The danger presented by 
vehicles parked on the existing 
restrictions and the proposed restrictions 
is not relevant to the day of the week. 
Although traffic volumes are lower on 
Sundays, double parking and vehicles 
parked near to junctions and crossing 
points still present a risk to other road 
users.

Page 35



Objector 8                 . Residential occupier of 703 Manchester Old 
Road

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

 
Good Morning,

I would like to object to the removal of 
parking outside my home (703 Manchester 
Old Road) due to the issue of not enough 
parking spaces in the current area. I have 
restricted parking to the street behind my 
property due to flats as well as the side street 
not having enough space as it is when people 
park on the main road.  

If this is the case can specific spaces be 
registered on the side street to park so I do 
have a guaranteed parking space to make sure 
my car isn't damaged?

                . 

The only right the general public, 
including residents, has on the highway is 
a right of passage along it. The Council 
does not have a duty to create or 
maintain on-street parking for residents.

There is no legal mechanism to designate 
on-street parking spaces for individual 
residents. The highway is for public use 
and cannot be reserved for use by one 
person. Residents Only Parking schemes 
are zonal based and any permit holder 
can park anywhere within the zone.

Page 36



Petition

A petition was received, signed by 31 local residents. The heading of the petition is shown 
below. The points raised in the petition are the same as those raised in the objections and 
have been responded to above.

Page 37



Report to Rochdale Township Committee

Date of Meeting 2nd August 2017
Portfolio Corporate & Resources
Report Author Victoria Bradshaw
Public/Private Document Public

Budget 2018/19 to 2020/21 Guidelines, Timetable and Public Engagement

Executive Summary

1. To recommend the budget guidelines, timetable and method of public 
engagement to be used in preparing the detailed 2018/19 budget and 
provisional budgets for 2019/20 and 2019/21.

Recommendation

2.1

2.1.1

2.1.2

2.1.3

2.1.4

2.2

2.3

Members are requested to consider and comment on the following:

The proposed budget timetable detailed at Appendix 1.

The revenue assumptions detailed in paragraph 4.2 to be incorporated into 
the budget setting process.

The revenue and capital budget principles referred to in paragraph 4.4. 

The proposed methods of public engagement outlined in paragraph 4.5 as 
part of the 2018/19 budget setting process.

Members are asked to note the Budget Challenge sessions to be undertaken 
as part of the 2018/19 budget setting process.

The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny are requested to consider the report 
further to its approval by Cabinet on 27th June 2017

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 Under the Budget & Policy Framework Cabinet is required to approve the 
proposed guidelines, timetable and methods of public engagement for setting 
the 2018/19 Budget and Provisional Budgets for 2019/20 and 2020/21by 
September each year.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1 Timetable

Page 38

Agenda Item 8



4.1.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.2

4.2.1

4.2.2

The Council’s budget must be approved by full Council before 11th March 
each year. This is a statutory requirement. The process begins in June with 
approval being sought for the assumptions and principles on which the 
budget is to be based. These will be used as a part of the determination of 
the overall budget position.

Throughout the year we consult on the budget and savings proposals.  
Financial projections are updated as further information becomes available 
for the Government Funding Settlement and other known changes, including 
local decisions. The updated budget and feedback from consultations are 
reported back to Cabinet in February with recommendations for Budget 
Council, who will in turn set the budget.

Services are notified of their resource allocations following Budget Council in 
February. The full budget timetable is detailed at Appendix 1

Revenue Budget Assumptions for 2018/19 – 2020/21

As part of the budget setting process the Council makes a number of 
assumptions in respect of the key elements of the Council’s revenue budget.  
Appendix 2 provides a summary of these assumptions for 2018/19, 2019/20 
and 2020/21. Future reports will make Cabinet aware of any changes that 
impact on the current budget assumptions. These are outlined below.

Local Government Finance Settlement
As part of the 2016/17 Local Government Finance Settlement the 
Government offered any council that wished to take it up a four-year funding 
settlement to 2019/20. The Council agreed to accept the offer, and the 
funding was confirmed in the 2017/18 Local Government Finance 
Settlement. For Rochdale the four-year settlement covered the level of 
Revenue Support Grant.

Central Government has also announced that Revenue Support Grant will 
be phased out and that councils will retain 100% of business rates 
generated nationally. Rochdale is part of the Greater Manchester 100% 
Business Rates Retention Pilot Scheme, and as such will not receive 
Revenue Support Grant directly. Instead the levels of Revenue Support 
Grant contained in the four-year settlement are built into the revised 
calculation of Business Rates Top-up Grant under the 100% Business Rates 
Retention Pilot Scheme (see section 4.2.3). 

Council Tax Increases - Assumptions 2018/19 – 2020/21
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy is to maximise income 
generated locally and therefore, assumes, for planning purposes, an 
increase in Council Tax of 1.99% for each year 2018/19 to 2020/21 in line 
with current referendum limits.

The 2017/18 Local Government Finance Settlement offered the flexibility to 
charge an Adult Social Care Precept of up to an additional 3% on council tax 
for the next 2 years. If a council applies a 3% precept in 2017/18 and 
2018/19, they cannot apply an increase for the Adult Social Care Precept in 

Page 39



4.2.3

4.2.4

2019/20, in order to maintain a 6% precept across the 3 years. A 3% precept 
was approved for 2017/18. The budget  assumes a 3% precept in 2018/19 
and no additional precept in 2019/20 and 2020/21.

Any variation in the level of Council Tax increase approved will have an 
impact on the forecast budget position.

Council Tax Base
Our Council Tax base is currently 53,025, representing  the number of Band 
D equivalent properties that we collect Council Tax from.  The Council Tax 
base will be reviewed and formally considered by Cabinet in January of each 
year. The level of Council Tax Base is a key component in the calculation of 
resources available to the Council.

Business Rates
Central Government has announced that Revenue Support Grant will be 
phased out and that councils will retain 100% of business rates generated 
locally. The Local Government Settlement 2017/18 included the introduction 
of the 100% retention of Business Rates for identified regional pilot 
authorities, including Greater Manchester. 

The pilot authorities will each retain 100% of locally-raised business rates. In 
return Greater Manchester will forgo Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and the 
Public Health Grant. Authorities’ tariffs and top-ups will be adjusted to 
ensure that these changes are cost neutral to individual authorities. The 
pilots will also test a number of potential elements of the 100% business 
rates retention scheme, including revised safety net arrangements. 

The pilots will be without detriment to the resources that would have been 
available to individual authorities under the current local government finance 
regime (with any “detriment” payments funded from outside the Settlement). 
The budget assumes that the GM Pilot will continue in 2018/19 and 2019/20, 
prior to the introduction of 100% Business Rates Retention from 2020/21.

The budget assumes, for planning purposes, an incease in the level of 
business rates income received of 3.2% in 2018/19, 3.6% in 2019/20, and 
2% in 2020/21. The business rates increases are based on the assumed 
RPI at September over the next four years, as per the 2017/18 Local 
Government Finance Settlement.

Pay Inflation
The budget assumes for planning purposes that the pay award will be 1% 
per annum for 2018/19 to 2020/21. The Government has implemented a 1% 
pay settlement for most local government staff for both 2016/17 and 
2017/18. Any settlement above 1% will increase the expenditure 
requirement for 2018/19 to 2020/21. Every change of 0.5% equates to 
approximately £400k. 

The salary budget includes assumptions for planning purposes for the rise in 
the Rochdale Living Wage for 2018/19 to 2020/21, maintaining the Council’s 
current pay above the level of the National Living Wage through to 2020/21.

Page 40



4.2.5

4.2.6

4.2.7

4.2.8

4.2.9

4.2.10

Superannuation Rates
The employer superannuation contribution rate is assumed not to increase 
during 2018/19, 2019/20 and 2020/21. This is based on the advice by 
Greater Manchester Pension Fund (GMPF). Detailed work has been 
undertaken with GMPF and the proposal is to amend the contribution rates 
to 20.5%, and to reduce the level of the early retirement and redundancy 
provision provided by the GMPF to reflect our current forecast level of early 
retirement and redundancy costs. 

Price Inflation
The budget assumes 0% inflation across the majority of the Council’s non-
pay expenditure budgets including grants that the Council provides. 
Contractual arrangements and other significant inflation issues will be 
considered on a case by case basis. 

Discretionary Fees and Charges
Fees and Charges are reviewed on an annual basis. For 2018/19 to 2020/21 
the amount of increase assumed for planning purposes is recommended to 
be 2% per annum. 

Waste Disposal Levy
The waste disposal levy is calculated by a formula across Greater 
Manchester which takes account of recycling levels. If Rochdale Borough 
did not increase recycling at the same level as other GM Authorities there 
would be an impact on the waste disposal levy charged to the Council thus 
leading to an increased cost to the Council’s budget.
The Waste Disposal Levy assumed for in the budget is based on the latest 
projections provided by GM Waste Disposal Authority (GMWDA).

Planned contract changes will now take place from 2019/20 rather than 
2018/19 as previously anticipated, meaning that the GMWDA levy for 
2018/19 is estimated to increase by 12.2%. The levy is estimated to 
decrease by 9.9% in 2019/20 and 2.9% 2020/21 as savings are realised. 

Passenger Transport Levy
The budget assumes a 0% increase in the Passenger Transport Levy for 
2018/19 to 2020/21. The Passenger Transport Levy will be subject to 
consideration/agreement as a consequence of the Passenger Transport 
Authority’s budget setting process in 2018/19 and subsequent years.

Improved Better Care Fund

The Better Care Fund (BCF) brings together elements of the Clinical 
Commissioning Group and Local Authority budgets into a pooled 
arrangement. This is to encompass integrated commissioning which will 
support the transformation and integration of health and social care services. 

The national Improved Better Care Fund allocations of £825m in 2018/19 
and £1.5bn in 2019/20, confirmed in the 2017/18 Local Government Finance 
Settlement, assumed that councils will increase Council Tax for the Adult 

Page 41



4.2.11

4.3

4.3.1

4.3.2

Social Care precept. The allocation methodology uses the 2013 social care 
relative needs formula and allocates funding against resources available. 

 
Rochdale’s allocation is £5.361m in 2018/19 and £9.240m in 2019/20. 

In the March 2017 Budget the Government announced an additional £2bn to 
help local authorities provide high quality social care to more people and to 
ease the pressure on the NHS. The £2bn is to be paid over 3 years, £1bn in 
2017/18, £0.674bn in 2018/19 and £0.337bn in 2019/20. The funds are to be 
built into the original Improved Better Care Fund, with local authorities 
working closely with NHS colleagues to consider how the funds can be 
spent effectively. 

Rochdale’s allocation is £3.169m for 2018/19 and £1.568m for 2019/20. 

Improved Better Care Fund

2018/19 2019/20
£m £m

Initial allocation per 2017/18 Local 
Government Finance Settlement

5.361 9.240

Additional funding for adult social care 
announced at Budget 2017

3.169 1.568

Total Improved Better Care Fund 8.530 10.808

No information has been provided on grant allocations for 2020/21. The 
budget assumes the same funding levels as 2019/20 for planning purposes.

New Homes Bonus

The New Homes Bonus (NHB) Scheme is designed to provide incentives 
and rewards for Local Authorities who have a net increase in housing stock 
and have brought empty properties back into use in their areas. From 
2018/19 the number of years the NHB is paid for is 4 years. Growth in 
housing stock will only be rewarded above a baseline of 0.4% of opening 
housing stock.

The assumed level of New Homes Bonus grant is based on a net growth in 
total housing stock of 450 properties per annum and a decrease in the 
number of long-term empty properties of 68 per annum. This will generate 
NHB grant of £300k per annum.

Capital

A review of the capital programme is currently being undertaken. This review 
will provide a three year capital programme for 2018/19 to 2020/21 taking 
into consideration the estimated reduction in capital resources and the 
limited revenue funding available for Capital Schemes in these years. 

Aims of the Capital Programme

Page 42



4.3.3

4.4

4.4.1

4.4.2

4.5

4.5.1

4.5.2

The Capital Programme aims to:
- Deliver investment in the Borough to support the Borough wide 

priorities, including economic benefit to the Borough and bring in 
additional resources;

- Deliver investment in Service Provision to deliver future savings;
- Maintain and enhance the Council’s assets;
- Support Devolution;
- Meet Statutory provision;
- Provide Value for Money.

A report to Cabinet in September will recommend a Capital Programme for 
2018/19 to 2020/21 for consideration. This will then be included as part of 
the 2018/19 budget consultation.

Budget Principles

Detailed guidelines are provided to all relevant staff to ensure that revenue 
budgets for individual services are prepared consistently. These guidelines 
contain details of the assumptions that are to be made in setting the revenue 
budget and also set out broad principles that are to be adhered to. The 
principles that are proposed for inclusion in the budget guidelines for 
2018/19 to 2020/21 are provided at Appendix 3.

The Capital Principles have been developed to enable focus on the purpose 
of the Capital Programme and to seek agreement for the use of limited 
resources. The principles for the Capital Programme are provided at 
Appendix 4.

Public Engagement

The Council is intending to undertake a Public Engagement initiative during 
Summer and Autumn 2017, involving residents, businesses and other 
stakeholders prior to consultation on the budget 2018/19 to 2020/21 and 
savings proposals.

As in previous years the initiative is intended to:

- raise awareness of the services that the Council currently delivers;

- raise awareness of the Council’s current budget position, both 
resources and expenditure;

- explain the future challenges as a result of funding reductions, 
increased demand for services and other pressures, and the difficult 
decisions we have to make;

- highlight the part that residents and businesses can play in the future 
of Rochdale and in helping to reduce costs;

- highlight the need for the Council and residents/businesses to work 
together;

Page 43



4.5.3

4.5.4

4.6

4.6.1

4.6.2

4.7

4.7.1

- undertake a general conversation with stakeholders on their opinions 
and thoughts on the above.

Wherever possible the intention will be to work alongside other engagement 
initiatives to raise awareness of the budget challenges, to seek views and 
also highlight how residents can help.

Public Engagement for the Budget 2018/19 is suggested to be undertaken 
as a three stage process:

A)  General Budget Conversation during July – September by :

 Prezi animation (animated digital presentation).
 Online questionnaire 
 Social media campaign to direct the public to the website and a 1 

minute version of the Prezi.
 Staff engagement via intranet content and briefings.
 Printed questionnaire to work with targeted group of residents who 

are unlikely to engage via the Council’s website. 
 Link into Directorate events to promote the Budget Conversation.

B)  Formal consultation of the Budget 2018/19 and savings proposals during 
September 2017 – January 2018.

C)  March 2018 – provide feedback online as to the engagement process 
and what is happening as a result of the resident participation in the Budget 
process.

Budget Challenge Sessions

As part of the budget process Budget Challenge Sessions will be held for 
each Committee Portfolio Area. 

The aim of the sessions is:

 For Directors to provide service information to enable Members to 
scrutinise spend and service priorities;

 To enable a challenge process to be undertaken on budgets; 
 To review options for savings over the next three years to meet the 

budget gap in 2018/19 – 2020/21.

Alternatives Considered

The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced budget. The budget setting 
process is complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. It is equally 
important that assumptions used in the preparation of the budget are 
agreed, reasonable and consistently applied by all services.

Page 44



Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 Financial implications are considered in the main body of the report.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

6.1.1

6.1.2

Risk Implications 

The budget forecast has been based on a number of assumptions, known 
levels of expenditure and anticipated levels of resources. Final confirmation of 
these assumptions will not be received/ finalised until November/December 
this year.  There are a number of areas of the Council’s budget where risks to 
the projections contained in this report have been identified. 

The most significant of these are:-

 Monitoring of the 2017/18 budget will provide Cabinet with regular 
updates on any pressures/savings for the Council. Any associated on 
going implications will be incorporated into the budget projections for 
2018/19 and future years.

 Savings – the level of savings required for 2018/19, 2019/20 and 
2020/21 is currently being considered. There is a risk to the overall 
budget of the non-achievement of these savings due to the 
identification and/or implementation of the proposals. A three year 
budget is to be set in February 2018 which provides time to implement 
the level of savings required to balance the budget over the period 
2018/19 to 2020/21.

 Specific Grants and Contributions – the number and amount of 
specific grants received by the Council may be lower/higher than 
anticipated. If a grant increases, a process has been introduced to 
review all additional income received and the decision is made 
whether the resource is allocated to that area. If a grant decreases, 
Cabinet will consider the financial implications on the Council services 
provided.

 Council Tax – Central Government provides a cap on the amount of 
Council Tax increase a Local Authority could make before a 
referendum of the local residents was required.  The budget assumes 
a 4.99% increase in 2018/19 comprising a 1.99% increase for general 
purposes and a 3% increase in respect of the adult care precept, and 
a 1.99% increase in both 2019/20 and 2020/21, comprising a 1.99% 
increase for general purposes and a 0% increase in respect of the 
adult care precept. These percentage increases are included for 
planning purposes only, and will be reviewed by Cabinet leading up to 
a recommendation at Budget Council for each year. 

 Council Services - the impact of the economic climate on the residents 

Page 45



6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

of Rochdale Borough and the increased demand this may lead to for 
Council services could impact on cost of services, as could general 
demographic changes.

 Health and Social Care Devolution – the impact of pooling budgets 
with the Clinical Commissioning Group within a pooled Budget. The 
financial risk is that the investment in health and social care services 
does not deliver the benefits assumed. These benefits are required 
not only to fund interventions to invest to save in the long term but 
also to contribute towards closing the  budget gaps of all partners 
delivering health and social care services.

 Public Health – impact of the reduction in Public Health funding.

 Waste Disposal Levy – the Waste Disposal Levy is calculated by a 
formula across Greater Manchester, which takes account of recycling 
levels. Should Rochdale Borough not increase recycling at the same 
level as other GM Authorities this will impact on the levy, and would 
lead to an increased cost to the Council’s budget.

 Inflation – impact of changes in the price of goods and services used 
by the Council compared to the percentage assumed in the budget 
projections. 

 Fees and charges income – impact of any economic slowdown on 
levels of usage of charged for Council services could lead to income 
levels not being achieved.

 Investment income – the impact of low interest rates and implications 
of the economic slowdown on the level of dividends/interest received 
by the Council.

 Academies – the impact of the Government’s policies regarding the 
conversion of schools to Academies on the Council’s budget.

Legal Implications

The Council is under a duty to calculate the budget in accordance with 
Section 32 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 and must make three 
calculations namely: an estimate of the Council’s gross revenue expenditure; 
an estimate of anticipated income; and a calculation of the difference 
between the two. The amount of the budget requirement must be sufficient to 
meet the Council’s budget commitments and ensure a balanced budget. The 
amount of the budget requirement must leave the Council with adequate 
financial reserves. The level of budget requirement must not be 
unreasonable having regard to the Council’s fiduciary duty to its Council Tax 
payers and non-domestic rate payers.  

Failure to make a lawful Council Tax on or before 11 March could have 
serious financial results for the Council and make the Council vulnerable to 
an Order from the Courts requiring it to make a specified increase in Council 

Page 46



Tax.

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 places a general duty on 
local authorities to make arrangements for ‘the proper administration of their 
financial affairs'.
 
Information must be published and included in the Council Tax demand 
notice. The Secretary of State has made regulations, which require charging 
authorities to issue demand notices in a form and with contents prescribed by 
these regulations. 

There is also a duty under Section 65 of the 1992 Act to consult persons or 
bodies appearing to be representative of persons subject to non-domestic 
rates in each area about proposals for expenditure (including capital 
expenditure) for each financial year.

Personnel Implications

The report outlines the proposed timetable for preparing the detailed 2018/19 
budget and this timetable includes the requirement to undertake formal 
workforce consultation with the staff and trade unions.   The consultation will 
be undertaken in accordance with the Council’s established formal staff 
consultation processes including meetings of the Joint Consultative Group 
and Service Consultative Groups. 

Equalities Impacts 

Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment
Workforce equality impact assessments will be provided with any savings 
proposals and an overall workforce equality impact assessment on the 
budget will be presented to facilitate final decision making.

Equality/Community Impact Assessments
Equality Impact assessments will be provided with any savings proposals 
and an overall equality impact assessment on the budget will be presented to 
facilitate final decision making.

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

6.3

6.3.1

6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

Consultation

7.1

7.2

Stakeholders are consulted at appropriate stages throughout the budget 
preparation process. The Council is intending to carry out a Public 
Engagement initiative during the Summer of 2017, involving residents, 
businesses and their representative bodies and other stakeholders.

Consultation with the Trade Unions via the JCC at Corporate level and via 
SCGs at service level will be undertaken and the outcome of consultations 
will be considered by Cabinet.

Page 47



Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Budget 2018/19 to 2020/21 files Finance Services, N1Riverside 

For Further Information Contact: Victoria Bradshaw
victoria.bradshaw@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 925409

Page 48

mailto:victoria.bradshaw@rochdale.gov.uk


APPENDIX 1

Budget Timetable 2018/19 to 2020/21 

Date Meeting/Event Budget Guidelines and Timetable/Public Engagement

2017
June Cabinet 27th June Budget Guidelines and Timetable/Public Engagement
September Budget Cabinet 14th September 1. Discretionary Fees & Charges 2018/19

2. Capital Programme 2018/19 - 2020/21   }
3. Revenue Budget 2018/19 - 2020/21         } For Consultation
4. Savings Programme 2018/19 - 2019/20   }                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
5. Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 - 2022/23

November  Cabinet 28th November 1. Discretionary Fees & Charges 2018/19 - Post Consultation
2. Savings programme 2018/19 - 2019/20 - Post Consultation
3. Savings Programme 2018/19 - 2019/20 - Pre Consultation 
workforce for service delivery proposals

December Council 13th December Approval of:
Council Tax base setting 2018/19
Business Rates baseline 2018/19

2018
January Budget Cabinet ( January) 1. Savings Programme 2018/19 - 2019/20 - Post Consultation 

(Workforce proposals only)
2. Budget update 2018/19 - 2020/21 following Autumn 
Budget/Provisional Settlement

February Budget Cabinet (20th February)

February Budget Council (28th February)
March

1. Local Government Act 2013 - 
2. Budget 2018/19 including:
- Council Tax setting 2018/19
- Revenue Budget 2018/19 and forecast 2019/20 and 2020/21
- Capital Budget 2018/19 and forecast 2019/20 and 2020/21
-Treasury Management Strategy 2018/19
- Pay Policy 2018/19
- Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 - 2022/23 (Review)

Statutory Deadline to set Budget 11th March

Page 49



APPENDIX 2

Budget Assumptions 2018/19 to 2020/21

Area of Budget 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Pay 1% Increase 1% Increase 1% Increase
Local Living Wage 4.7% Increase 5.1% Increase 5.4% Increase

20.5% 20.5% 20.5%
(0.0% Increase) (0.0% Increase) (0.0% Increase)

Prices* 0% 0% 0%

Discretionary Fees & Charges 2% Increase 2% Increase 2% Increase

Underlying Waste Disposal Levy 12.2% Increase 9.9% Decrease 2.9% Decrease

Underlying PTA Levy 0%   Increase 0%   Increase 0%   Increase

Council Tax

General Increase 1.99% Increase 1.99% Increase 1.99% Increase
Adult Care Precept 3% Increase 0% Increase 0% Increase
Total Council Tax 4.99% Increase 1.99% Increase 1.99% Increase

Business Rates
Business Rates income/Top-up Grant 3.2% Increase 3.6% Increase 2% Increase

Superannuation Contribution Rate

* Prices – Contractual arrangements and other significant inflation issues will be considered on a 
case by case basis. 

Page 50



APPENDIX 3

REVENUE BUDGET PRINCIPLES

1. Budget Preparation

1.1 Service estimates are required at service level for the years 2018/19 through 
to 2020/21.  The format of the service submissions, which are to be supported 
by appropriate working papers, will be determined by the Chief Financial 
Officer in consultation with Directors.

1.2 Estimate preparation should take account of technical guidance issued from 
time to time on local authority accounting practices and other related issues.

1.3 The budget process shall adhere to the approved timetable.

2. Existing Service Level Budgets

2.1 The budget will initially be prepared on the basis that current resources 
support existing service levels and with the exception of the schools budget 
should be varied to reflect:
(a) The full year effect of previous year’s savings proposals.
(b) Consequences of the approved capital programme.
(c) Adjustments in relation to specific ‘one year only’ allocations and other 

time expired funding.
(d) Other specific Council decisions.

2.2 Most education and related budgets are funded through a specific grant 
namely the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). Separate systems and 
procedures relating to DSG funded budgets operate outside of the 
mainstream budget guidelines.  

2.3 Salary budgets are to be prepared with reference to the 2018/19 budget (net 
of any vacancy factor) adjusted for pay awards, approved service changes, 
savings and other approved variations. The salary budgets can only be used 
to employ staff in established posts on approved grades in line with the 
following conditions:

(a) All changes to the establishment where Council funding is available in full 
must be approved by Cabinet, or within the requirements of the Scheme 
of Delegation.

(b) All changes to the establishment where resource implications arise, even 
if the costs are met entirely from external funding, must also be approved 
by Cabinet, or within the requirements of the Scheme of Delegation.

(c) Posts funded from external sources must be established as temporary or 
specific purpose posts unless it can be demonstrated that:
 the external funding is permanent, or
 specific approval has been given, or
 future years’ costs can be contained within current budgets.

Page 51



(d) Directors must balance service requirements against the need to manage 
within their budgets when taking decisions to fill vacant posts or employ 
temporary staff.

3                     Discretionary Fees and Charges

3.1 Fees and charges must be reviewed on an annual basis.  A report will be 
submitted to Cabinet in September each year on proposals for the following 
year. 

3.2 Fees and charges are to be varied to achieve an overall annual increase in 
income for each Service in line with the level approved by Cabinet. Increases 
can be implemented at any time subject to the overall financial target being 
achieved.  

3.3 If the target cannot be achieved by increasing fees and charges then 
alternative savings must be identified.  Claims by Directors to exempt or apply 
a lesser increase to any part of their service must be justified in the context of 
their Service policies and plans and referred to Cabinet.

4. External Funding

4.1 Wherever possible external funding should be used to reduce pressure on 
current expenditure, thereby releasing resources for redirection into priority 
areas.

4.2 All legal, human resources, financial and administrative support costs 
required to manage grant conditions and fulfill the role of the accountable 
body should be charged, wherever possible, against the funding regime.

5. Consultation

5.1 Members will take account of consultations with stakeholders at appropriate 
stages throughout the budget preparation process. This will include 
Townships, Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Trade Unions, partners and 
the public.

Page 52



APPENDIX 4 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME PRINCIPLES

1. Capital Programme Preparation

1.1 The Capital Programme is compiled at project level for the years 2018/19 
through to 2020/21.  The format of the capital schemes submissions, which 
are to be supported by appropriate working papers, will be determined by the 
Chief Financial Officer in consultation with Directors. 

1.2 Estimate preparation should take account of technical guidance issued from 
time to time on local authority accounting practices and other related issues. 
The profiling of capital expenditure into the correct financial years and over 
the projects development will be key to ensure the amount of re phasing of 
capital resources from one year to another is kept to a minimum, and to 
reduce the amount of revenue budget required to finance the project.

1.3 The budget process shall adhere to the approved timetable.

2. Principles for the Capital Programme

2.1 Capital Resources are to be used as follows:

 Decisions on the use of Capital Receipts will be considered as part of the 
budget process.

 Un-ring fenced and ring fenced externally funded grants are considered 
on a case by case basis.

 Any new borrowing is considered with the implications for the revenue 
budget position.

2.2 Capital projects for approval are:

 Considered by Portfolio Holders for the service who agree to the services 
requests for funding.

 Completed to ensure all implications of the Capital Scheme are included 
in the ‘Business Cases’.

 Inclusive of Multi Year Schemes with the spend profiled accurately across 
the financial years.

Page 53



Report to Rochdale Township Committee

Date of Meeting 2nd August 2017
Portfolio Planning & Development
Report Author Keith Dawson
Public/Private Document Public

Township Planning Panels

Executive Summary

1. Setting out proposals for the determination of Township engagement with 
current and emerging Planning Proposals and priorities for the use of current 
or prospective S106 funds.

Recommendation

2.

2.1

That consideration of allocation of S106 funds relating to projects within the 
Township be delegated to the Township Delegated Sub-Committee.  

Determine the structure and appoint Members of the Township Committee to 
sit on a Planning consultative panel for the consideration of Planning 
Applications or preliminary development enquiries within the Township. 

Reason for Recommendation

3. The report is presented for the township to determine the most appropriate 
way forward to engage in planning proposals in the Township

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

4.2

In October 2016 the Council approved arrangements for a centralised 
planning function and the transfer of all planning related delegated functions 
from Township Planning Sub Committees to the Planning and Licensing 
Committee.

To retain the benefits of local knowledge and involvement in planning 
decisions it was proposed that Township Members should be involved on a 
consultative panel basis for significant emerging development proposals. This 
would allow for early engagement, at pre-application and application stages, 
on proposals relating to those wards falling within that Township , and Member 
involvement in establishing priorities for infrastructure and S106 expenditure.

Early engagement from a consultative panel can help to identify problems to 

Page 54

Agenda Item 9



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

be addressed as proposals for the development are put together and is 
consistent with Government advice to provide greater certainty for developers 
engaging in the planning process. It will allow Officers to offer more robust pre 
application advice for developers as priorities for the scope and use of any 
S106 contributions are identified early and Councillors views on targeted local 
spends can be sought and embedded into the scheme.  This is especially 
critical given legislative changes which have imposed a restriction on the 
Councils ability to pool developer contributions to deliver infrastructure and the 
need to specify the purpose for seeking any S106 contribution at the planning 
decision stage.

Role of Township Members

Planning applications - Township Panels

The Panel receives and reviews in advance a weekly list of planning 
applications, considers selected planning applications where appropriate, and 
provides comments which are reported to the Planning and Licensing 
Committee where the application is to be considered by the Committee.
It is proposed that the Panels focus initially on these areas which can be 
expanded at a later date into a range of options for the Panel to receive 
information on pre-application discussions and upcoming significant 
developments in township and enable the Panel to take a central role in 
engaging with development proposals. A typical agenda may include:

 The Weekly List of planning applications received
 An update on S106 funds available and progress on local projects
 An update on Pre- application discussions 
 An early briefing on forthcoming significant development proposals

For major schemes the Panel would receive information on proposals both at 
the pre application stage and when the application has been submitted.

The Panel could also receive updates on S106 availability, expenditure and 
projects in the township but would not have any decision making powers to 
determine spend. 

Infrastructure/Section 106 agreements

Currently, reports are presented to Township seeking Members approval for 
the allocation of funds paid to the Council to comply with the terms of existing 
S106 agreements.  These payments are typically made following the 
completion of the development.  The Council has adopted planning policies 
which restrict and guide how any contributions can be spent. There are also 
various legal tests around the reasonableness and relevance of any required 
contribution to the proposed development, without which that development 
could not otherwise acceptably take place.

Recent legislative changes now mean the Council has to justify and determine 
the need for any required infrastructure improvement, and use of any 
contribution, at the planning application stage.  This, in conjunction with the 

Page 55



4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

centralisation of planning decision making, provides an opportunity to engage 
those Members not sitting on the Planning and Licensing Committee in the 
development process, to shape emerging development proposals at the pre 
planning application stage.  A devolved Sub Committee of the Township could 
be utilised for this purpose thereby involving a greater number of Members.  
This Sub Committee could also receive updates on S106 availability, 
expenditure and projects in the Township to ensure all ward members are 
informed and consulted.  In respect of Rochdale Township, which involves a 
greater number of Members, the sub committee would still appear workable. 
However it is suggested that relevant Ward members be engaged in these 
emerging development projects before any reports are presented to that 
Committee.

Make up of Township Panels

Planning decisions can be very controversial and it is important that decision 
making is open and transparent and should leave no grounds for suggesting 
that those participating in the decision were biased or that a decision was 
procedurally improper. The makeup of Panels must be careful considered to 
avoid any issues or perception of procedural impropriety or predetermination 
so for example a Member sitting on the Planning and Licensing Committee 
should not sit on their respective Township Panel.  

It is proposed that the Panel should be a small group of the relevant township 
members consisting of the Chair of the Township Committee plus one 
member per ward for each township who do not sit on the Planning and 
Licensing Committee. Where the Chair of a Township also sits on Planning 
and Licensing Committee it is proposed that the vice chair should chair the 
Panel. This is to ensure that any Member sitting on the Planning and 
Licensing Committee does not sit on their respective Township Panel to avoid 
any perception of predetermination.  

The Panel is likely to require professional advice and a development 
management officer will act as advisor to the Panel. It is proposed that an 
experienced Planning Officer will be made available to each Panel to provide 
support and professional advice. The Panel would be a private meeting.

Frequency of Township Panel Meetings

The Council is expected to make robust planning decisions in an efficient and 
effective manner to meet government performance targets and minimise 
delays to securing new investment. It can be a difficult balance to take quick 
decisions whilst enabling those with an interest in the development to 
understand and help to shape development proposals.

The Township Panels must be convened in a way that does not impact on 
performance, although certainty at pre application stage may help to minimise 
delays. This will mean regular meetings early in the application process before 
the conclusion of any public/stakeholder consultation in order the application 
can be reported to the Planning and Licensing Committee for a decision within 
timescale.  

Page 56



4.13

4.14

Given the pressures on performance this is likely to mean that meetings will 
need to be held on a monthly basis.  Subject to Members views, it is 
suggested these are scheduled around existing meetings or working groups 
within each Township.  

Alternatives Considered

The alternative option is to retain existing arrangements. Officers have 
discounted this option as it would not realise the benefits of local knowledge 
the Townships can input into planning decisions.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. Within existing budgets.

Risk and Policy Implications

There is a risk of perception of predetermination in planning decision making. 
This risk is mitigated by ensuring that a Member sitting on the Planning and 
Licensing Committee does not sit on their respective Township Panel.

6.

Consultation

7. Briefing with Leader and Portfolio holder.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None 

For Further Information Contact: Keith Dawson
Keith.dawson@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 924388

Page 57

mailto:Keith.dawson@rochdale.gov.uk

	Agenda
	6 Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 28 June 2017 of Middleton Township Committee
	7 Objections to Traffic Regulation Order - Manchester Old Road, Middleton
	8 Budget 2018/19 to 2020/21 Guidelines, Timetable and Public Engagement
	9 Township Planning Panels

